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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Exclusion of people from coverage of automobile insurance. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1, 2 

 
Chairman Keiser:  Opens the hearing on HB 1448. 
 
Rep Schobinger~District 40, Minot:  Attachment 1. Introduces HB 1448.  It’s to eliminate 
for a step down policy.  Explains what a step down policy. 
 
3:20 
 
Rep Kasper:  I’m going to assume the arguments of people free market or can’t afford.  Do 
you have an estimate compared to the drop down in premiums? 
 
Rep Schobinger:  I don’t know because I don’t sell these policies.  I just know about it.   
 
Rep D Ruby:  Does that also includes a kid on your policy & they move away from home, is 
it a reason for the company to utilize this lower coverage level? 
 
Rep Schobinger:  If the person is a named person on the policy, those limits would stand.  
It’s the permissive driver drop down. 
 
Rep P Anderson:  Is there some disclosure? 
 
Rep Schobinger:  There would be on the policy but not on the declaration’s page. 
 
Rep P Anderson:  Would a normal person know to ask that? 
 
Rep Schobinger:  That’s why the bill is before you. 
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Chairman Keiser:  This could result in a lower premium.  There is a risk here if I allow 
someone not named on the policy.  The insurance wouldn’t have permitted that & would have 
to pay a higher premium if they have known.  
 
Rep Schobinger:  Yes, but when I write a liability, my job is to make sure that they are 
covered for the exposure they have.   If it’s a covered loss, you’re covered.  The exclusion is 
still there. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  Anyone else here to testify in support, opposition on HB 1448? 
 
Pat Ward~Represent the Association of ND Insurers:  Attachment 2. 
 
17:15 
 
Rep Richter:  I borrow my car & the policy drops down to liability, who pays the difference 
between what the insurance is now at & what the cost is? 
 
Pat Ward:  If there is underinsured motorist situation, it would be the other individuals under 
insured policy.  It’s their negligence & the court will look at the person who was driving the 
car, not the owner of the car. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  Gives a scenario, do I still have the million-dollar coverage for myself?  
 
Pat Ward:  Yes you would.  It’s not your fault.   
 
Rep Schauer:  How is the consumer notified that they have the drop down policy? 
 
Pat Ward:  They usually know what they are buying & knows what they are buying. 
 
Rep Schauer:  Specifically, how do they know it? 
 
Pat Ward:  They have to identify who they are excluding. They can buy high risk policy.   
 
Rep Kasper:  I don’t know what my coverages are.  The blanket statement that everyone 
knows what they are buying is not the way it works out there.   
 
Pat Ward:  Companies are not selling these exclusions without the customer identifying who 
they are excluding. 
 
Rep Kasper:  I’m talking about the drop down. 
 
Pat Ward:  That’s a permissive use.  Agents are proactively selling these. 
 
Rep P Anderson:  Would you be unopposed if this is on the declaration page? 
 
Pat Ward:  I don’t think so. 
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Rep D Ruby:  Do you know how many companies that offer this in the state? 
 
Pat Ward:  I do not. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  Anyone here to testify in the opposite position, neutral?  Closes the 
hearing on HB 1448.  Closes the hearing. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Exclusion of people from coverage of automobile insurance. 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Keiser:  Reopens the hearing on HB 1448. 
 
Rep D Ruby:  Moves to adopt amendment 19.1070.01002. 
 
Rep Kasper:  Second. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  Further discussion. 
 
Voice vote ~ motion carried. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  We have HB 1448 as amended, what are the wishes of the committee? 
 
Rep Adams:  Moves HB 1448 as Amended. 
 
Rep D Ruby:  Second. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  Further discussion? 
 
Rep P Anderson:  The public needs to know.  I like this bill. 
 
Roll call was taken on HB 1448 for a Do Pass as Amended with 10 yes, 1 no, 3 absent 
& Rep Louser is the carrier. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Exclusion of people from coverage of automobile insurance. 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Keiser:  Reopens the hearing on HB 1448. 
 
1:50 
 
Rep Kasper:  Moves to reconsider HB 1448. 
 
Rep Schauer:  Second. 
 
Voice vote ~ motion carried. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  Is there anyone who wants to speak to the committee in support or the 
amendment?  Anyone here to speak against HB 1448. 
 
Pat Ward~Represents the ND Association of ND Insurers:   Thank you for bring this bill 
back.  At the time of the initial hearing, the way the bill was written, nobody felt there was a 
need to oppose at the time.  At the time of the hearing, Rep Schobinger added an 
amendment, which we didn’t see.  It changed the bill & we would oppose the bill.  Rep 
Schobinger might have had a misunderstanding on how it actually works.  The committee 
was operating under a misunderstanding when the acted. 
 
Rob Hovland~Center Mutual Company:  Give his perspective on Center Mutual’ s position.  
This section of the law is about allow people to have exclusions from the policy.  Any time 
you tinker, someone is going to be rated on their policy & they don’t want them on their policy.  
That’s why they get excluded & their premiums are lower. 

 
Give a brief description of a permissive user with a poster board. 
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Permissive User 
 

Anyone who is NOT of the following: 
 

~Named Insured 
 
~Spouse 
 
~Family member who is a resident of household 
 
~Other driver specifically listed 
 
If you are any one of the four, this will never have an impact. 
 
 
Poster 2 
 

How does it work? 
 
~The maximum limit of liability of a permissive user is the minimum limit-$25,000 per person, 
$50,000 per accident. 
 
~If he gives me permission to user, they are a permissive user. 
 
~If his policy has that language, permission user drives & causes an accident. 
 
~Language is in bold & capital letters. 
 
~Mutual company is a cooperative.   
 
16:50 
 
Rep Laning:  If you had a bad accident, his insurance would pay the minimum levels, then 
your insurance will take over.   
 
Rob:  Correct. 
 
Rep Laning:  What if you didn’t have any insurance? 
 
Rob:  Then you would have the minimal limits.  That’s your choice. 
 
Rep Laning:  The accident is higher than the minimal limits, the owner of the car is 
responsible for that? 
 
Rob:  No, 99.9%, it would be the driver.  If there was a law suit, it did name the owner, the 
owner has the full limits available to them. 
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Rep Bosch:  The person that was injured, 25 from your coverage & person driving has 25, 
but it was serious, the third person is seriously injured.  How does it impact then? 
 
Rob:  There is an underinsured motorist coverage, which you choose your own limits. 

 
Rep Schauer:  If you say that permissive use is defined by what it isn’t, why wouldn’t you 
define it by what it is?   
 
Rob:  Because it’s everyone else.  These people don’t apply but anyone else.  It’s essentially 
it’s people who are not policy holders that use the vehicle.   
 
Rep Schauer:  I find that confusing.  If this policy is so good, why not make people aware of 
the coverages changes on both the declaration page & by signing the notification page? 
 
Rob:  I don’t have a problem to put it on the deck page.  It doesn’t affect the policy holder.  
We are trying to consolidate information. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  The permissive driver, does it applies to commercial & individual policies? 
 
Rob:  Commercial policies are written differently.  The employer knows that they will have 
different employee drivers. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  It’s seems the same to me.  I have to indicate who the drivers & they have 
to be approved before they are allowed to drive. 
 
Rob:   That’s a different class of drivers & not done in drop down. 
 
Chris Oen~Director of Claims for NoDak Insurance Company:  We are also in opposition 
of the amended bill.  The review of the proposed changes, I see two issues that hamper an 
insurance company to control the rate in which it has to charge to its customer.   
 
First, lines 7-9 & also on 16, the striking the work individuals will make it difficult to enforce.   
The taxi business, the personal individual is not designed to cover that.  Every personal auto 
policy in this state has that exclusion.  
 
The second thing, on line 12, the current law doesn’t does not allow us to deny or give no 
coverage.  The law allows us to do is take those group of permissive individual drivers that 
are not a policy holder, restrict them down to the minimal limit.  Insurance base their rates on 
what vehicles & who is driving.  It makes it difficult to almost impossible for use properly rate 
our premiums to give back to our customers.   
 
Portability of insurance, means is whoever is driving, if I have an insurance policy, I’m driving 
somebody’s vehicle, I have accessibility to my liability policy to follow me. 
 
Commercial carrier, how NoDak approaches this step or drop down limit.  We do insure farm 
vehicles which are essentially a commercial type vehicle.  Typically, if they are working for a 
business or farm, if they were to cause an accident, these drop down provisions wouldn’t 
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apply.  The business or farmer are liable because they are responsible for the actions of their 
employees.   
 
This is strictly about personal autos.  We took that language & sent it out to the policy holders.  
We know we shouldn’t bare the consequences.   
 
I choose to have my insurance rate me with all my disclosures & pay the proper rate. 
 
31:58 
 
Chairman Keiser:  Our personal policy & the coverage we have in ND; does it apply to rental 
cars out of state?  Correct? 
 
Chris:  Yes.  I want to touch on one more topic.  The underinsured & uninsured motorist, this 
is a required coverage in ND.  I choose to insure myself. 
 
Rep Richter:  The driver’s ed, the students, are they a class of individuals? 
 
Chris:  In that scenario, I guess that could be a considered a class.  The driver instructor has 
to have a commercial, therefore the drop down wouldn’t be an issue.  The driver instructor is 
in charge. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  You said that on line 12, you were concerned about striking the class of 
individuals.  If that true, that was the original bill. 
 
Chris:  The copy of the bill is the engrossed bill.   
 
Chairman Keiser:  The original bill, I thought you were in favor of the bill. 
 
Chris:  I’m against this strike. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  Anyone else here to testify in opposition, neutral position?  Closes the 
hearing.   
 
Chairman Keiser:  We have HB 1448 as amended before the committee.  We have a couple 
of options, removing the amendments or leave the amendments. What are the wishes of the 
committee? 
 
Rep Bosch:  Move Do Not Pass as Amended. 
 
Rep C Johnson:  Second. 
 
Roll call was taken on a Do Not Pass as Amended on HB 1448 with 11 yes, 2 no, 1 
absent & Rep Louser is the carrier. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to exclusion of people from coverage of automobile insurance. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Att. #1-7  

 
Chairman Klein: Opened the hearing on SB. All members were present.  
 
Representative Randy Schobinger, District 40: see attachment #1 for testimony in 
support.  
 
(9:10) Chairman Klein: You seem to have singled out a couple of auto insurers. How many 
do we have in the state? 
 
Representative Schobinger: It’s hard to say but more than two.  
 
Chairman Klein: And this step down is used by every company in the state? 
 
Representative Schobinger: The way I understand it, it’s just two or three.  
 
Chairman Klein: So you’re advocating changing the whole century code for two or three 
companies?  
 
Representative Schobinger: I’m advocating we change the century code back to its original 
intent of HB 1378 in 2001. That was supposed to exclude a couple of drivers that had bad 
driving records. And not to include all permissive drivers.  
 
Chairman Klein: So you went back to the insurance department and implied they aren’t 
applying the law the way we had intended.  
 
Representative Schobinger: They are applying it the way it was written; it just wasn’t 
contemplated before it was passed. The way it’s done in most states, is because when 
somebody tries to file, the insurance department has the right to say we aren’t going to accept 
it. I asked Tennessee about it, there is no company writing this type of coverage and no 
company that has been approved for it.  
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David Schweigert, attorney, business owner, Bismarck, resident: See attachment #2 for 
testimony in support of the bill.  
 
Chairman Klein: You have no exposure, she’s the only one exposed?  
 
Dave: They could sue me that’s a possibility. The legal claim against me is negligent 
entrustment. There is no doubt that she’s responsible for those actions.   
 
Chairman Klein: But she wasn’t insured, you were just trusting her? 
 
Dave: Exactly, I have a vehicle that I insure for $1M. I expect the people that I ask to drive 
that vehicle would also be insured. I have a million-dollar policy I’ve asked someone to do 
something for me, I reasonably believe that he’s insured under that policy. Doing something 
I asked him to do for my convenience.  
 
Chairman Klein: Does this happen often? 
 
David: Yes, it does. There are people that have been exposed by this.  
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: I have a commercial vehicle policy; would they be required to have 
a commercial farmer’s policy? 
 
David: The issue with your CGL is that it essentially covers auto accidents.  
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: I’m specifically talking about a commercial auto policy; I’m assuming 
this step down is not in that policy? 
 
David: I have not seen them in commercial policies generally because they are written more 
broadly.  
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: You talk about the situation with the farmer and the four kids, would 
that kick in, can that insurance company subrogate against the vehicle that just hit them?  
 
David: Let’s say there are only two people in that scenario. There is no underinsured motorist 
that is following that claim. If those limits were higher, yes you could make a claim. One more 
problem with this drop down, let’s assume in the situation with the baby sitter driving the car, 
they are in an accident and are seriously injured. The baby sitter was negligent. In that 
scenario there is a prohibition in a lot of policies and I believe under the North Dakota 
insurance code, that says you can’t make both a liability and an underinsured motorist claim 
against the same policy. So now if my children are injured and I bring a claim against the 
babysitter who has these decreased limits, I am prohibited from going on my own same policy 
and even going after the UIM benefits that I’ve paid for.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: Were these drop down clauses in effect before this original law passed? 
 
David: Not that I’m aware of.   
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Senator Piepkorn: So the problem you’re trying to solve was made possible by this 
legislation.  
 
David: Yes.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: So you have a negligent son at home who has been in trouble quite a 
bit. You would put his name on the list, that’s where its intended. He would be a named 
individual.  
 
David: Right, basically if the law is amended as proposed it doesn’t prohibit the insurance 
company form restricting the coverage for my son, or even excluding him in that situation.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: Along those lines, you have a more responsible daughter who’s at 
college and she comes back and would be able to drive your car and be fully insured? 
 
David: Yes. She would not be specifically named.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: If then as an adult she does register to vote in Grand Forks, is she still 
covered? 
 
David: If the amendment passes as proposed, she would be covered. You could exclude the 
errant son and yet keep the daughter in those non “uninsureds” as being covered.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: In the case of your friends coming out to help with a weening or a 
branding, he was a chronic alcoholic, so we all conclude that that added to his lack of 
judgement, and you still let him drive that vehicle, what’s the situation then? 
 
David: I believe in that situation, that regardless of whether or not this amendment is made, 
you could still go after the farmer for a negligent entrustment type action there. This basically, 
if the concern is about the people out here that these guys are negligently throwing in the 
vehicle, this change does nothing for that. The negligent entrustment claims would still be 
there, this is just basically expanding and saying that someone I ask to drive my vehicle 
should be covered.  
 
Jaclyn Hall, North Dakota Association for Justice, introduced Lindsay Wilz, 
attorney/shareholder, Maring Williams Law Office: see attachment #3-4 for testimony in 
support of the bill.  
 
(41:40)Chairman Klein: So what I heard is our agents are undertrained cause even they 
don’t understand the policies that their providing to their consumers? Wouldn’t you have a 
legal remedy there because your agent didn’t even know what was before them?  
 
Lindsay: An agent’s duty to an insured is only to provide the coverage requested. So if I go 
into an insurance agent’s office and ask for full coverage, all the insurance agent has to do 
is be sure that I have collision coverage, comprehensive coverage, and I am insured to the 
state minimum limits.  
 
Chairman Klein: He does not have to let you know of the step down? 
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Lindsay: Nope. There is no requirement for an agent to inform you of what the insurance 
policy says.  
 
Chairman Klein: I see a lot of shaking heads behind you. Insurance is complicated, but 
nevertheless, we believe the agent has a handle on it. On the flip side.  
 
Lindsay: We spoke with the defense side of the bar about examples where this has come 
up, and a defense attorney has a client that is currently being sued and there is a step down 
clause in his policy. The defense attorney is under the insurance company, even after a claim 
was brought against this individual, never informed the individual that he was subject to drop 
down limits and did not inform the named insured of that and litigation was commenced and 
the defense attorney was the first person that informed him that he might be subject to 
personal responsibility because of his step down coverage.  
 
(45:00) Pat Ward, Association of North Dakota Insurers, introduced Rob Hovland, 
Center Mutual: see attachment #5 for testimony in opposition to the bill. See attachment #6 
for examples referred to in the testimony.  
 
(50:45) Senator Piepkorn: Didn’t we hear in Schobinger’s testimony that individual had a 
broader interpretation? 
 
Chairman Klein: Well we have another lawyer’s interpretation. He explained just now what 
he believes would’ve been the right verbiage. Could you just say that again? 
 
Rob: If you wanted to be able to exclude multiple people, this language would read may 
exclude named individuals and if you’re ever in a court room, somebody is challenging that 
there are multiple people excluded, the judge is gonna go back and say the plaintiff’s lawyer 
says that they took out the words individuals, they didn’t write that you could have named 
individuals excluded. In 2019 legislature, why would they take out individuals if it wasn’t to 
make this so that only one person could be excluded. From an insurance perspective I would 
never dare exclude multiple people. I think that would be in direct violation of that.  
 
(57:08) Senator Piepkorn: Are the amounts listed? Cause I would suggest that your 
consumer does not know what the minimum limits amount is.  
 
Rob: We do not list the amounts. We list the amount of coverage they’ve purchased but we 
don’t list the statutory limits.  
 
(1:11:22) Chairman Klein: Thoughts I had on the spouse issue, when someone is going 
through a divorce, isn’t there a timeline there anyway.  
 
Rob: That doesn’t have anything to do with step down coverage. That’s in all policies, if a 
spouse leaves the residence for over 90 days they’re no longer insured. The way to alleviate 
that is spouses can both be named insured.  
 
Chairman Klein: Getting back to that military scenario. My drop down is just to the minimum? 
Can you explain how that would work? 
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Rob: If you ever have a question just add them as a driver. It’s extremely rare that somebody 
would come back and have their own.  
 
Chris Oen, Director of Claims for Nodak Insurance: testified in opposition to the bill. It is 
not buried in the language. It was specifically. We actually do put limits in there. Nodak has 
had this issue three times, all three the Supreme Court. The purchaser, the insured, the 
customer should not bear the responsibility. There’s been a lot of discussion about residency. 
We have to apply all of our coverage very liberally. We have to look at all of the scenarios. 
North Dakota already defines residency in the century code. There’s been a lot of talk of 
specific scenarios. At the end of the day, our job is to protect our customer. We’ve never 
applied a drop down provision to a college student that I know of. When we don’t know who 
our customers are giving their keys out to, we need to. I believe that I should not bear that 
financial burden on a transaction that I was not a part of. These step down provisions will 
never apply to our named insureds or their family members. That driver is never gonna be 
subject to that exposure. Our insured buys the protection to cover their farm. There was a 
misconception, the drop down limits will never apply to the driver of an insured. Any employee 
of the insured would have full coverage.  
 

(1:20:56) Senator Burckhard: Legislators live away from home for 120 days, do we lose our 
resident status? 
 
Chris: You do not lose your residence when you are away from work temporarily for work or 
other employment commitments. Another thing I want to add is this is only personal auto. This 
does not apply to commercial auto. Anything operating under a farm business. I’m going to 
urge a do not pass.  
 
Chairman Klein: Often times people with issues will come to us, they attempt to work out 
their concerns before session. Did you know anything about this before?  
 
Chris: Originally, we understood this as a language clean up and then an amendment where 
there was some strike off language that occurred. Through Representative Schobinger, we 
had proposed an agreement to require a signature page at the time of purchase, or possibly 
giving a disclosure at the bottom of the deck page. But really the people the drop down limit 
applies to are never gonna see that page. But we’re very open and we’re not trying to hide 
this from our customers. Nodak insurance has had this for quite some time. We have a 95% 
renewal rate with our customers. This is not an issue with the customers who purchase our 
insurance.   
 
Chairman Klein: Closed the hearing on HB 1448.  
 
See attachment #7 for additional testimony submitted to the committee.  
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Chairman Klein: Opened the committee work session on   
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: I spoke to my insurance agent, and as far as she knows, those are 
the only two companies that have that policy and it’s because they are a part of the state. In 
North Dakota we have it in law but these other national companies don’t have it at all.  
 
Senator Roers: They don’t have it at all? 
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: Nope.  
 
Chairman Klein: Well Lindsay that young lawyer suggested that there are five other 
companies that have it too. And those companies would suggest they do but its optional.  
 
Senator Kreun: The reason they gave in their testimony is aren’t they just a state operation?  
 
Chairman Klein: I would know Center Mutual, we’ve had that issue before the committee on 
what counties they can be in, where they can do business. However, when Nodak took the 
jump to become for profit corporation, they can do business outside of that, they have used 
this provision. They only got this non-mutual status last session, that’s part of how they 
develop their contracts with some of their policy holders.  
 
Senator Kreun: The other company indicated their board of directors and their clients are 
very satisfied by the way this is laid out and it hasn’t cause a problem.  The other company 
that has gone public, isn’t that just their prerogative to have that step down, and then if you 
go look the one is covered under the first insurance and if that runs out it goes to the other 
insurance, and in all actuality, the person that they’re insuring when they come to an 
agreement doesn’t even know what that is because the insurance company has taken over 
and that insured is taken out of the conversation. So my question is where is the problem?  
 



Senate Industry, Business and Labor Committee  
HB 1448 
3/20/19 
Page 2  
   

Chairman Klein: I would agree, the question we asked as we were leaving was what was 
the average claim? It was under $15,000 of course the attorneys argue its always over, well 
they generally aren’t involved until it gets to be a bigger something of consequence.   
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: It clearly lets who you have your vehicle insured with, off the hook in 
the event that something happens and puts it back on the driver’s insurance company. But 
the reason they were here supporting that was because of that. They’ve only got $50,000 in 
the game at that point. I agree with that but what is strange to me is why don’t other 
companies offer that to them? You would think State Farm would come in and say we can 
offer 25/50, let’s do it. That’s what I don’t understand. They say it’s a good thing for me, it just 
drops that liability down to 25/50 and then it goes on the driver, I don’t know. Why don’t those 
other companies go in and just grab that and run with those liability limits if they can? Why 
aren’t they doing it?  
 
Chairman Klein: You’ll have to do some research. How that effect what these two companies 
are doing. They seem to have full disclosure of how they are operating. It’s like buying a rider 
for something special. You don’t have to abide by the step down, you’re just being notified 
that they’re gonna save some money. It’s a good example not to borrow your car.  
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: Is it possible somebody from the insurance department could come 
down and talk to us about it?  
 
Chairman Klein: The question we could’ve asked them is are they providing disclosure and 
how is it effecting the insured when they have a question and is that against any of the rules 
in the insurance department  
 
Senator Kreun: One out of two thousand claims involves step down, how many claims do 
we have if it’s just one out of two thousand? If they’ve got the proper documentation, all the 
info that we had on business and farming that had nothing to do with it, we got all this info 
that had nothing to do with it.  
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: And that’s my question, when you said that they are offering this, 
they are actually taking it away. By this are they taking something away? To me it sounds 
like a great idea, until I end up in court and they go well you’re the idiot that borrowed your 
car out. I borrow somebody my care, I have to have some responsibility. What if he’s driving 
the car and the front tire falls off? Okay who’s responsibility is that? That could come back 
on me as lack of maintenance. Now do I have $450,000 coverage on that?  
 
Chairman Klein: You have whatever you have. We’re gonna go to him first up to $25,000, if 
the accident created less than $25,000 he’s done, but if it created $100,000 $25 comes out 
of his wallet and then they come back.  
 
Senator Roers: His 25 goes first then it comes down to me.  
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: The question would be what if he doesn’t have it. Or if the tire came 
off and it was actually my fault. His insurance covers if it was his fault, but if it was the lack 
of maintenance on my vehicle, is my insurance company gonna pay that extra half or are we 
sitting there in limbo fighting over who is gonna pay?   
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Senator Kreun: Disclosure is part of the issue, and they showed us disclosure is part of the 
issue. They have you sign it and say we don’t have this coverage. That’s with any coverage 
you have.  
 
Senator Roers: It says you do have the drop down coverage.  
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: It’s an exclusion. You’re paging through it and you think it’s an add 
on. Is it or isn’t it?  
 
Senator Kreun: You weigh the premium versus the coverage. When I get mine I’ve got two 
pages of exclusions.  
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: There is not a coverage, you can’t tell them you don’t want that I 
know that for a fact. You aren’t gonna get that taken off.  
 
Senator Kreun: There’s the list of exclusions and either I want the policy or not with the 
exclusions.  
 
Chairman Klein: Center Mutual made the decision to include the step down coverage. The 
question is, they made that decision and have lived with it for 20 years, I’m still trying to figure 
out who has been wronged and why it’s such a critical thing we’re trying to fix.   
 
Senator Roers: You used the word, they made a decision to provide, I think the word is they 
made the decision to reduce that exposure, consequently getting you a better rate because 
they don’t have that exposure out there of the third party use of the car. So from that 
perspective you take that coverage based on the step down coverage or you go to x company 
that doesn’t have a step down policy.  
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: We as a state allow them to provide that coverage, is there a savings 
to our insurance, we don’t know that because they don’t offer it the other way. But, I can 
guarantee you they are the ones that are off the hook in the case of an accident.   
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Chairman Klein: Opened the committee work session on HB 1448.  
 
Chairman Klein: Vice Chairman Vedaa had some questions he wanted resolved last time.  
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: Yeah, I talked with him and yeah, you’re always covered after that. 
Your liability will always cover you. You will never be left without liability coverage because 
you loaned out your vehicle. The only time you are, is if you’ve had someone you’ve excluded 
off that policy and you’ve let them drive your vehicle.  
 
Senator Roers: Didn’t the policy say that if my child borrowed my car to his friend, that’s 
where the rub was? That third person isn’t a part of your liability coverage.  
 
Chairman Klein: That is where I believe the most accidents happen but it wasn’t necessarily 
a rub, because what happens is it comes back to that driver before it comes back to the 
owner of the vehicle.  
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: As long as that son of yours is covered under your policy, there’s 
coverage back to your policy.  
 
Chairman Klein: I just don’t think there is a problem here so I’m not supporting the bill.  
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: Moved a Do Not Pass.  
 
Senator Kreun: Seconded.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: I thought I heard you say at some point, does this effect the bottom line 
of these companies that do follow the step down procedure where they’ve got caps? Are they 
making more money because of this? 
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Vice Chairman Vedaa: Basically it could or it could not. because the step down could come 
back on the other person’s insurance. So if I loan my vehicle out to Senator Roers, my policy 
would cover up to $50,000 of that liability, Senator Roers’ company could have a step down 
but now it’s going under his policy. So it works both ways.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: You lost me.  
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: So I have a step down, but so does Senator Roers. So his company 
has to cover him now after $50,000, after my policy is done. It shifts the liability around, but 
a company that doesn’t offer step down would be liable for that whole thing on my policy. It’s 
actually benefiting the policy holder cause now it doesn’t mess with my insurance.  
 
Chairman Klein: I would say the short answer is yes. The non-policy holder is responsible 
for part of the claim. The policy holder is the insured, he is underwritten for his car and now 
he borrowed the car to some uninsured person. That person has an accident. We go to the 
driver first, rather than the car. Once you start having accidents your premium goes up. And 
in a mutual, all the policy holders are then subject to a lower premium, I would say that’s why 
they’ve adopted this program.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: I’ve got my college student, I live in Velva, he lives in Grand Forks, he 
comes back uses my car. I’ve got the 50/25 thing. But it costs more?  
 
Chairman Klein: Your college student is covered, under your policy there is no step down. 
He’s a family member he’s never gonna be taken out of your policy. He is subject to that 
short period of time that step down coverage is never gonna apply.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: Even if he registers in Grand Forks to vote? 
 
Chairman Klein: Yeah, because Rob was clear, registering to vote does not declare 
residence. It’ll never happen in North Dakota.   
 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 5 yeas, 1 nays, 0 absent.   
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa will carry the bill.  
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